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CALEDONIA STATION

Caledonia Station was the first name of the present village of Caledonia. It all started when the first
train came from Jackson to Grand Rapids January 1, 1870. The first train from Jackson consisted of the
locomotive “Muskegon’' drawing six cars. Dwight Goss in the “History of Grand Rapids and its Indust-
ries’” wrote that the Grand Valley Railroad promised four trains daily each way, and made a very approp-
riate New Year's gift to the business interests of the area. It did not remain an independent milroad very

long. From its start it had been a part of the Michigan Central, and on the 18th of April 1870, it became
the Grand Rapids division of that corporation.

In August of 1870 afier the railroad had started 1o operate, David Kinsey, who owned and farmed the

land around the station, laid out and platted the northern part of his farm for the village of Caledonia.

Caledonia village was incorporated on March 21, iB8B, with the following officers: President, John
McQueen; Hecorder, Conrad F. Beeler; Councilmen, David Kinsey, Edward Durhiom, William Towsley,
William H. Seibert, William D. Barber, and John Rosenberg.
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When Caledonia was incorporated in 1888 it
had nearly 500 people, United Brethren and Meth-
odist churches, woodenware and button factories,
and a weekly newspaper, “The Caledonia News."'
The businesses also included a creamery, a
dentist, a carpenter, two hardwares, a fruit evap-
orator, two wagonmakers, a hamessmaker, three
general stores, four masons, two painters, a horse
breeder, two blacksmiths, a barber, a veterinary
surgeon, two shoemakers, a grain dealer, a cattle
breeder, a bee keeper, two druggists, three phys-
icians, a nursery, hotel livery, millinery, live-
stock dealer, meat market, poultry breeder, two
carpet weavers, contractors, and an undertaker.

THE MISSING MONUMENT

Sounds like a Nancy Drew mystery, doesn't
it? Actually it's a detective case, the solution of
which we would like to involve the community in.

Some of pur citizens with long memories recall
a statue or monument which stood in the middle of
Main and Lake Streets in Caledonia — that's right,
smack dab in the middle of the intersection!
What we would like to determine are the following
facts: who was responsible for its erection in the
first place, in whose memory was it raised, in
what years was it raised and then removed, and
what happened o it alter that?

Please contact “"WELCOME BACK FROM THE
ATTIC” if you have any helpful answers to our
questions. We are particularly interested in locat-
ing a photo of this interesting and mysterious
object from our past.

HISTORICAL SKETCHES
OF THE CALEDONIA AREA

This paper is a project of the Caledonia Area
Bicentennial Committee. The plans are to present
historical photos, stories, maps, previously pub-
lished news stories, personal accounts of the
past, etc. The paper will be published as material
for it is gathered. The committee will need your
help in two ways. First, we hope that you will
make available your old photos, newspaper clip-
pings, personal accounts, etc. Second, we encour-
age you to keep each issue for your personal
collection by becoming a subscriber to *"WELCOME
BACK FROM THE ATTIC.”

Most of the work being done to publish this
paper is by volunteers; therefore it will be issued
only when material can be put together for each
new issue,

This first issue was mailed along with a reg-
ular copy of TAKE FIVE, the Caledonia Community
School newspaper, as a sample issue. All future
issues will be available only by subscription and
in Caledonia area stores. Back issues will be
available at Passenger Printing Service and from
the subscription manager.

The committee staff for this first issne was
Chairman, Kenneth R. Gackler; Secretary and
Subscription Manager, Sue Strouse; Photo Repro-
duction, Jay L. Shook; Layout and Printing,
Edward and Don Passenger.

Mail your subseription to “WELCOME BACK
FROM THE ATTIC,”" Box 1870, Caledonia, Mich.
49316, The next 10 issues will be §5.00,
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The above photo shows four businesses on the
north side of Main Street in about 1895. From left
to rght: Brooks & Snow (Stephen Brooks and
Franklin G. Snmow), hardware and implements;
Kinsey & Meyers (Charles Kinsey and Albert
Meyers), general store; Conrad F. Beeler, druggist;
VanAmburg Bros. (Charles A. & William R.), gen-
eral store. The large room on the second floor of
the Beeler and VanAmburg stores was known as
the Kennedy Hall, and over Kinsey & Meyers was
the 1.0.0.F. Lodge Hall. Today the I.0.O.F.
Lodge owns all of the former Kinsey and Kennedy
blocks.

The left photo is of Mr. and Mrs. Charles H.
Kinsey, Rhea L. (Cronin), and Minor. Charles
Kinsey was a son of David Kinsey, the founder of
Caledonia Station, and a partner in the Kinsey &
Meyers general store. Mrs. Rhea Cronin today
lives in Caledonia at her home at 308 Pleasant.
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OAK GROVE HOUSE

The Oak Grove House was located on the southwest side of the intersection of Whitneyville Avenue
and 100th Street. In 1839 Mr. Asahel Kent conceived the idea of a public house in the wildemess, on the
Battle Creek trail. The lollowing year Mr. Kent died and was the first to be buried in the Bowne Center

cemetery., In 1842 his widow, Harriet Campbell Kent, married Peter McNaughton, who had come from
Scotland a few years before.

Travelers were so numerous that within a few years alter its erection two additions were built. [t was
often referred to as a three-story house — a misnomer, since the additions were all on the ground floor.
Even with the two additions the place was [requently crowded, and after all the regu!ar beds were taken,
the host would make a row of beds around the office floor, facing toward a large fireplace at one end of

the mom. Everyone was made welcome; no one was turned away, for room could always be found to stow
away another guest.

Mr. and Mrs. McNaughton continued to run the tavem until 1860, when they sold it to Warren Streeter,
who operated it until 1867.

In April of 1867 John B. Proctor came to Caledonia and bought 150 acres of land from Warren Streeter.

[his included the Oak Grove louse. In 1869 Mr. Proctor tore down the tavern to make room for farm
suildings.
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MR. JOHN B. PROCTOR, MR.

John B. Proctor and his son, John
R., were nurserymen and imported
evergreen seedlings from France.
Fruit trees from their nurseries were
sold in Michigan and many were
shipped out of state.

John R. and J. Clifford Proctor
were officers in the State Bank of
Caledonia when it was organized
in 1904. Later Clifford served as
cashier from about 1916 to 1930.

Today Clifford Proctor’s daughter
and son-in-law, Mr. and Mrs. James
Sherman, still live in the century-old
family home at 10084 Whitneyville
Avenue.

& MRS. JOHN R. PROCTOR, J. CLIFFORD PROCTOR

WHITNEY TAVERN STAND
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WHITNEY TAVERN STAND

Ezra Whitney came to the area in the summer of 1842. In 1853 he erected the Whitney Tavern Stand

located in Cascade Township on the stage route between Battle Creek and Grand Rapids. In those days
Whitneyville Avenue was a State road.

While the interior has been changed greatly from the time the hotel was first built, the original siding
on the 60-foot long building has been replaced, but the numerous handmade paned windows remain the
same as when originally installed.

The Whitney Tavern Stand had the largest and finest ballroom in the vicinity. The entire upper floor
of the building has a “spring floor.” This floor is a complete platform, structurally separate from the
rest of the building. It is hung by cables between the joists of the outside walls, Without this contrivance,
a frolicking crowd of thirty or forty square dancers would shake the building to pieces! Even today, one
person can start the entire {loor to a rhythmic bouncing.

ALASKA FOUNDED 1848

Ten years after Asahel Kent
penetrated the Caledonia town-
ship forests to establish his
tavern, William H. Brown erected

a sawmill at Brownsville, now
Alaska.

Thus established in 1848,
Alaska in 1875 was a thriving
community on the banks of the
Thomapple River. With a popula-
tion of 350, it boasted a flouring
mill, two saw mills, two general
stores, a hardware store, boot and
shoe store, four physicians, two
lawyers, a wagon shop, hotel,
two blacksmiths, two millinery
shops, three churches, livery and
express agent.

The village prospered for sev-
eral years until nearly the tum
of the century. Tragedy struck
with several fires. On September
18, 1895, a fire wiped out nearly
all the business district.

o R e e Today only one of Alaska's
PR - & : R . .

: ; former business places still
stands. It was a general store
whose last proprietor was Clar-
—— ence Snay.
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PIONEER GONE,

Mas. A. D. Thomas of Lansing One
of the First White Seftlers of
Caledonia Township.

Miss Laura Almena Kenl was
born in Ravenna, Ohio, August,
1832, and died at her home in Lan-
sing, Feb. 13, 1908, of paralysis and
complications due to her advanced
age. She came with her parents,
Mr. and Mre. Aschel Kent 1o Michi-
gan in 1836 seitling for a short time
just north of what is now the village
of Middleville, travelng the enlire
distance in & coversd wagon drawo
by a yoke of catfle. Shortly after
they moved into the lownship of Cal-

Mirs. . D. Thomas.

edonia (then known as township No.
5) and were instrumental in select-
ing Lhe name for the town, which
they called after Caledonia, N. Y.

settled on what is now known
aathe ]. R. Proctor farm making
them the first white scttlers in Cale-
donia. Here her father established
the Kent House which he conducted
until his death in 1840 ; he was the
first grown person buried in Bowne
Center cemetery, then nothing bu! a
wilderness. Later her mother mar-
rled Peter MeNawphion and the
house became known as McNaugh-
ton’e tavern. Here the girl Laura
becams inted wilh many noted
men of publiclile who had to do with
the shaping of Michipan's early
career.

‘The deceased received her educa-
tion in the Grand Rapids schools,
the city was then but a small hamlet
where the Indians traded furs for the
palefaces’ goods. She was one of
the first teachers in the town.

In 1853 ghe was married lo Aboer
D. Thomas and moved into Bowne
township, settling near Harris creek,
later moving to Middleville where
they resided until about ten years

when they moved to Lansing.
%f:ihh union were born  eleven chil-
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dren, nioe of whom, with their aged
father survive her ; namely Ida, Har-
riz, Minnie, Jennie, Geo. and Mrs.
C.B.C of Lansing, Wil-
der of Cooperseille, N. C. of Caledo-
nia and Roy of Portland Ore., also
t=o brothers—R. D. llcﬂaughhu of
Fraltport and E. J. McMaughton of
Middleville and one lulcr, Mrs.
Warren Lillie of Lowell; with
a large circle of friends are c:. led o
mourn the loss, and look back @
the sxempl hf: of a kind, Iuﬂﬂ!’q
christian wife and mother, who in
childhood gave her life"s work to her
heavenly father and lived for him fo
the lagt. Her patience and sweetness
through all the trials of this life were
beautiful 1o behold and endeared her
to a host of friends, and it has traly
been sabd tha! to know her was to
love her.

Short services were held at the
Lansing bome Saturday moming and
the remains were taken lo Bowne
Center where the burial was held at
two o'clock in the afterncon. Inter-
ment in the Bowne Center cometery.

Card of Thanks.

We wish to express cur sincere
thanks o the kind friends and neigh-
bors who rendered us such valuable
assistance in our great affliction, also
to the minister for his comforting
words and thoge who sent the many
beautiful floral tributes.

A. D TnoMas and FAMILY

THE LIFE OF A PIONEER

village, died Teesday moralng, Jan.
X, 1911, ai the home of his aisier, Mra.
Warren Llllie, at Lowell. The fo-
meral was beld &t Bowne Centor Feb.
2, his wife and foor davghiers hariog
previously been buried in the church-
yard at that place.

Abner Thomas was one of the early
ploacers of Middleville, He was born

Abnmer D. Thomas, formerly of this
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| band, Peter McNaughton, for many

YEUrS.

After their marriage Mr. and Mra.
Thumas seiiled on the lamls which hia
father had purchased in Downe, and
for lhe next twenly years consecrated
their lives to clearing up and develop-
ing the farm of 800 acres, and ralsing
a large family of eleven children,
weven of whom survive him,

Mr. Thomas was a man of active
pullic spitit and  wery materially
alded many of the early setilers of

Labarge

Or Caledonin Center, on
Thornapple River, in Caledonia
township, southeastern part of
Kent county, 18 miles southeast
of Grand Rapids, the county seat,
and 158 from Detroit, via Cale-
donia Station, which is 3 miles
west on the G.H. div. of the
M.C.R.R. Bank st Middleville.
Settled, 1866. Mail stage from
Caledonia Station daily, fare,
15 cents. Population, 75. George
C. Baker, postmasier.

Business Directory
Baker- George C., General Store
Begraw A.C., wagonmaker
Pearson J.T., cooper
Peer E.H., lumber Mair.
Rathbun: L..C., justice of peace

Sanbrook & Baker, floor and
cider mill

Stowe AW., live stock

from

MICHIGAN STATE GAZETEER

AND BUSINESS DIRECTORY,

Vel. 8, 1887-8,

Harria Creek and wicinity in obtain-
Ing their farme and bollding their
homes,

He was also more or leas active in pol-
itics, boing in his early life identified
with the Whig party. and aiter jta
digasluthon, with the Democratic party.
In 186X and again in 1564 wag the
candidate of his party for member of
the teginlature, and in 1868 for aheriff
of Hent county. He was also for aloe
years supervisor of the township of
Bowne, although that township was
strongly Republican. For many years
he was postmaster at Harris Creek,
whers bhe conductled a very prosperous
grist mill &nd geoeral store Mr
Thomas was always actively interested
im publlc schools and during the eo-
tire period of his residence in Bowne
was a school officer. and was also for
ong term a member of the achool board
at Middleville.

He was also active in promeliog the
Icwlruclionni the Grand River Val-
ley (mow Michigan Central) railroad
pear Ovld, Seneca, county, Bew York, . from JacksontoGrand Rapids. be,with
Bept. 16, 1824, His father, Jonathao | "Squire Brown of Nrownkille (oow
Thomas, came to Michigan in 1836 Alaska) and others endeavoring to lo-
and purchased a Jarge tract of land - cate the road threugh Harris Creck
on the Coldwater river in Bowne town-  and Alaska, which had they succeeded
ship, selectlng these lands bhecause of would probably have made the map of
the supposed waluable water power . this vicinity somewhat different, and

ABNER D. THOMAS

sites. Afterward a saw mill and &
grist mill were erecied on lhese lands
and were koown as Thomas' Mulls,

probably very materially changed the
hlatory of fhe lives of Mr. Themans and
bis family, for establishing the rhil-

and later when o postoffice was estab- road on the present routc diverted the
lished there as Harris Creck, so-tride of the country, and that, to-
named from John H. Harris, a broth- gether with the failure of the water
er-in-law of Abner Thomas. These power on Harria Creek, résulied In
mills did a thriviog b during | fal disaster 1o Mr. Thomas,
the later "5, throughout the ‘60a and |from which be waa never able o re-
early T, cover, and the efforts of himaelf and
Abner 1), Thomas came to Michigan wile were thenceforth directed to the
im 1845, He lived a1 Brst in the vil- education of thelr ehildren. In son-
lage of Grand Hapids and was em- nection with the promotion of this
ployed s clerk in the general sores railroad Mr. Thomas was ose of
of Willizm Roberts snd the Sincliirs, the thrée commissioners appointed to
piokeer merchants of that place. At coodemn for deput purposes, and ap-
that time a large part of the trade was prajssd the land oo which the Unlon
with the Indians and trappers, and 2 depot in Grand Rapids s erected.
large trade jo furs was conducted and] s 1870 Mr. Thomas, in partoership
Mr. Thomas acquired a rnnuiﬁcrl'b'lJ with the late T. A. PeRiemer of this
koowledge of the Indian langaage. village, and T. P. John=son of Tankee
In 1852 Mr, Thomas was married (o Springs erected the graln elevator in
Laura Almena MHent, the daughter of Middleville
Harriett Henl, whose husband kad In 1879 Mr., Thomas removed to
died at Caledonia in 1840, and who Middleville and has not since been
was the first grown person buricd in engaged in active business.
the churchyard at Bowne Center, Mr.  His wile preceded him jn death in
Thomas being buried on the same lot. Fehruary, 1904 He leaves surviving
Mr. Kent had opened the Oak Grove bim one brather, Jonathan Thomas
house in Caledonia on the ol stigre  residing i California, and seven chil-
route belween Balthe Créek and Grand droo= Wilder of Coopersville, Nathan
Hapids, and throogl which in thuese C. of Caledlonia, Lokoy C. of Port-
days was the main travel to Grand land, Oreged, Mra. Harrietl Colling-
Rapids, The Oak Girove howse woas wood of East Liansing, Minnmie, George
one of the numersus popular hostleries | K. and Harrls E. Thomas of Lansing.
on that route amd was condwcted by | Mr. Thomas sullcred oo llsess at his
the Widow Kent and ber second bus-| death, but lile guietly ebbed away
from old aye.
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CALEDONIA HIGH SCHOOL CLASSES 1910

Back Row: Ruth Williams, Seward Brock, Unknown?, Byron Bridegan, Levi Miller;

Fourth Row: Jennie Statsick, Jennie Bell LaFever, Floyd Bowman, Homer Diefenbaker;

Third Row: Wila Dutcher, Hazel Rowland, Alice Stanton, Leroy Christie, Tom Stanton, Charles Konkle;
Second Row: (Middle) Marguerite Hutchinson, Olney Adams, John Raab, Minor Kinsey;

First Row: Bertha Schreifer, Frieda Klump, Betty Wenger, Alice Konkle, Ollie Johnson, Adene Wilson,
Fred Finkbeiner.

Does anyone know the unknown person in the back row? Maybe someone who was in school or lived

in the Caledonia area around 1910 can identify the person. The editors of “"WELCOME BACK FROM THE
ATTIC" would like to hear from you.




